
 

AGENDA 
Utility Management Review Board 

August 9, 2012 
8:30 am 

Gatlinburg Convention Center 
Gatlinburg, Tennessee 

 

Call to Order 
 
Election of a Chairman 
 
Approval of Minutes       February 2, 2012 

June 6, 2012 
        June 14, 2012 
 
Cases:    Claiborne County Utilities District Claiborne County 

Mowbray Utility District  Hamilton County 
Siam Utility District   Carter County 

    Unicoi Water Utility District  Unicoi County 
West Cumberland Utility District Cumberland County 

    
Cases – Water Loss:  Hampton Utility District  Carter County   
 
Status reports:   Tuckaleechee Utility District  Blount County 
 
Status – Water Loss:  DeWhite Utility District  White County 
   
Compliance:   Calhoun-Charleston Utility District McMinn/Bradley Counties 
    Clearfork Utility District  Claiborne County 
    Cunningham Utility District  Montgomery County 
    First Utility District of Carter County Carter County 
    Holston Utility District  Sullivan County 
    Hornbeak Utility District  Obion County 
    Lakeview Utility District  Hawkins County 
    North Utility District    Decatur/Benton Counties   
    Old Hickory Utility District  Davidson County 
    Perryville Utility District  Decatur County 
    Roan Mountain Utility District  Carter County 
    Saltillo Utility District  Hardin County 
    West Overton Utility District  Overton County 
   
Petition:    Creation of Hartsville/Trousdale County Utility District 
     
Miscellaneous:   Complaint log 
    Jurisdiction list 

Next UMRB regular meeting   October 4, 2012   
   
Open Discussion 
 
Visitors to the Legislative Plaza are required to pass through a metal detector and must present photo identification.  Individuals with disabilities who wish to 
participate in this meeting or to review filings should contact the Division of Local Government Audit to discuss any auxiliary aids or services need to facilitate such 
participation.  Such contact may be in person or by writing, telephone or other means, and should be made prior to the scheduled meeting date to allow time to 
provide such aid or service.  Contact the Division of Local Government Audit (Ms. Joyce Welborn) for further information. 

505 Deaderick Street, Suite 1500 
James K. Polk State Office Building 

Nashville, TN  37243-1402 
Telephone (615) 401-7864 

Fax (615) 741-6216 
Joyce.Welborn@cot.tn.gov 

1

mailto:Joyce.Welborn@cot.tn.gov


MINUTES 
of the 

UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
February 2, 2012 

10:00 a.m. 
 
 
Chairman David Norton opened the meeting of the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) in 
Legislative Plaza, Room 31, Nashville, Tennessee.   
 
Board members present and constituting a quorum: 
David Norton, Chairperson, Hixson Utility District Commissioner 
Ann Butterworth, Comptroller Designee 
Charlie Anderson, Bloomingdale Utility District Commissioner 
Donnie Leggett, Hardeman Fayette Utility District Manager 
Tom Moss, Commissioner of the Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC) Designee 
Troy Roach, New Market Utility District Manager 
Donald Stafford, Eastside Utility District Manager 
 
Staff present: 
Joyce Welborn, Division of County Audit, Comptroller’s Office 
Greg Cothron, Staff Attorney, Comptroller’s Office 
Jim Arnette, Director, Division of County Audit, Comptroller’s Office 
Nathan Abbott, Division of County Audit, Comptroller’s Office 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Mr. Leggett moved approval of the minutes of October 6, 2011. Mr. Anderson seconded the motion, and 
it was unanimously approved. 
 
Chairman Norton then introduced Ms. Butterworth who informed the Board of numerous changes 
within the Comptroller’s office which relate to the work of the Board. The changes involve the moving of 
the Board to the Division of County Audit as well as the combination of County Audit and Municipal 
Audit upon the retirement of Dennis Dycus.  Mr. Bill Case was recognized for his years of service to the 
Board.  When Mr. Case retires March 31, Ms. Sheila Reed will be replacing him as the liaison to the 
Boards. 
 
Roger Murray vs. Cumberland Utility District 

Mr. Roger Murray filed a complaint against Cumberland Utility District stating that the District had either 
improperly installed his meter box or that the installation work was inferior which caused the meter box 
to settle onto the meter, resulting in a leak and a large water bill.   The District granted Mr. Murray a 
partial adjustment to the water bill.  Mr. Murray appeared before the District’s Board of Commissioners 

2



to request a total adjustment because he felt that he should not be held responsible for the leak due to 
the alleged poor workmanship of District personnel.  The District’s Board of Commissioners did not grant 
a total adjustment.  Whether the District, and its Board of Commissioners complied with the District’s 
bill adjustment/leak adjustment policy is the issue before the Board. 

Mr. Murray addressed the Board to explain the complaint.  All information presented by Mr. Murray had 
been included in the Board packet.  Mr. Sam Crass, Manager, Cumberland Utility District, also spoke to 
the Board to on behalf of the District.  He stated that District staff, and the Board of Commissioners, 
reviewed the matter and determined that the leak was not the fault of District personnel or equipment.  
Mr. Crass testified that due to the volume of water loss, the district adjusted Mr. Murray’s bill by a 
greater amount than required in the District’s leak adjustment policy. 

After questions to the parties and discussion among the Board members, Ms. Butterworth moved to 
dismiss the complaint as the District had shown compliance with its bill adjustment/leak adjustment 
policy. Mr. Roach seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 

Review of the purchasing policy of Bon de Croft Utility District 

Ms. Marcie Williams requested the Board review the appropriateness or adequacy of the purchasing 
policy as authorized in TCA 7-82-804.  Ms. Williams addressed the Board and stated that, after reading 
the District’s response to her request prepared by Mr. Don Scholes, attorney for the District, she agreed 
that the policy is adequate.  Mr. Leggett moved to dismiss the request to review the purchasing policy.  
Mr. Stafford seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 

Oak Ridge Utility District investigative Report 

Preceding discussion of the report, Mr. Cothron provided an update of the pending commissioner 
removal case concerning Powell Clinch Utility District.  He called the Board’s attention to the responses 
provided by the District’s attorney regarding the report.  The responses were electronically sent to the 
Board members after the issuance of the Board packet. He stated that some of the issues in the Powell 
Clinch report are the same as some of the issues in the Oak Ridge Utility District report.  He suggested 
that the Board not take action at this time pending any decision of the Powell Clinch case.  Ms. 
Butterworth moved to not take action at this time, but review the case in six months – assuming the 
Powell Clinch issue had been resolved.  Chairman Norton clarified that the Board postponing review was 
not a decision by the Board on the merits of the report.  Mr. Cothron stated that it was not an action of 
the Board which would preclude a future review and decision.  Mr. Moss seconded the motion, which 
was approved unanimously. 

Case Studies 
Citizens Gas Utility District 
Clearfork Utility District 
First Utility District of Hardin County 
Hornbeak Utility District 
Leoma Utility District 

3



North Utility District of Decatur and Benton Counties 
Savannah Valley Utility District 
South Side Utility District 
Striggersville Utility District 
Mr. Leggett made a motion to approve the staff recommendation on all the cases on the agenda.  Ms. 
Butterworth seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.  All cases are to be monitored until 
compliance with state law is reached. 
 
Water loss cases 
Cookeville Boat Dock Road Utility District 
Double Springs Utility District 
First Utility District of Carter County 
Iron City Utility District 
Knox Chapman Utility District 
Quebeck-Walling Utility District 
Sunbright Utility District 
With the exceptions noted by Mr. Moss, Mr. Leggett moved to approve the water loss information 
submitted by the utilities on the agenda.  Ms. Butterworth seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously.  Mr. Moss requested that Quebeck-Walling Utility District be required to correct the 
AWWA methodology which appeared to be submitted incorrectly.  Double Springs Utility District and 
First Utility District of Carter County are required to either adopt or submit the water leak detection 
program and submit them to the Board as part of the annual review process. 
 
Compliance reports 
Arthur Shawanee Utility District 
Blountville Utility District 
Cumberland Heights Utility District 
The most recent audits for these Districts reflect compliance and are dismissed from the Board’s 
jurisdiction. 
 
Miscellaneous Items 
Utility District Commissioner Training Approvals 
The information for training was presented to the Board. No action was required.  
 
Pending Legislation 
 Included in the member’s packet was SB2170/HB2225 which deals with self-appointed commissioners 
in multi-county districts. 
Ms. Welborn distributed to the Board additional legislation as follows: 
SB2652/HB2770 – requiring customer input on commissioner appointments prior to recommendations 
being made to the County Mayor. 

4



SB3209/HB3524 – allowing the Tennessee Local Development Authority to refer cases to this Board or 
the Water and Wastewater Financing Board for a system failing to meet any loan covenant with the 
authority. 
SB3297/HB3424 and SB3298/HB3426 – allows a public utility subject to the jurisdiction of the Tennessee 
Regulatory Authority to be included in negotiations of consolidation of a utility district in order to 
restore financial stability. 
SB3459/HB3501 – allows the Unicoi County Water District to revert to an election process when 
selecting new members of the board of commissioners 
SB3227/HB3541 – requires county commission approval in order to create a new utility district 
 
Mr. Leggett made a motion to send a letter to the Governor stating the Board’s opposition to 
SB3297/HB3424 and SB3298/HB3426.  Mr. Stafford seconded the motion.  The motion was carried with 
Ms. Butterworth not voting. 
 
Jurisdiction List 
Ms. Welborn stated that the Board package included a schedule identifying all systems which are 
currently under the Board’s jurisdiction.  Also included was a status report of the water loss cases under 
the Board’s review. 
 
Future Meetings 
The next meeting of the Board will be held at 10:00 am April 5, 2012, in Nashville. 
 
Ms. Butterworth moved to reconsider the actions of the Board regarding the approval of the October 6, 
2011 meeting.  The Board voted to take no action regarding the investigative report of the Cagle-
Freedonia Utility District.  

Mr. Leggett moved to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion, and it was 
unanimously approved. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
David Norton       Joyce Welborn 
Chairman      Board Coordinator 
 

5



MINUTES 
JOINT MEETING OF THE  

WATER AND WASTEWATER FINANCING BOARD  
And the  

UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
June 6, 2012 
10:00 a.m. 

 
 
Chairperson Ann Butterworth opened the joint meeting of the Water and Wastewater Financing 
Board and the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) in Legislative Plaza, Room 31, 
Nashville, Tennessee.   
 
Utility Management Review Board members present and constituting a quorum: 
Ann Butterworth, Comptroller Designee 
Charlie Anderson, Bloomingdale Utility District Commissioner 
Donnie Leggett, Hardeman Fayette Utility District Manager 
Tom Moss, Commissioner of the Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC) 
Designee 
Troy Roach, New Market Utility District Manager 
Donald Stafford, Eastside Utility District Manager 
 
Water and Wastewater Financing Board Members present and constituting a quorum: 
Ann Butterworth, Comptroller Designee 
Tom Moss, Commissioner of the Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC) 
Designee 
Ben Bolton, Representing Manufacturing Interests 
Drexel Heidel, Active Employee of a Water Utility District 
Randy Wilkins, Representing Utility Districts 
Betsy Crossley, Representing Municipalities 
 
Staff present: 
Joyce Welborn, Division of County Audit, Comptroller’s Office 
Greg Cothron, Staff Attorney, Comptroller’s Office 
Jim Arnette, Director, Division of County Audit, Comptroller’s Office 
 

Ms. Butterworth requested the members of the Boards introduce themselves and state who they 
represent.  She then asked Mr. Cothron to introduce his guest.  He stated that Ms. Rachel 
Newton would be training with him through the end of December 2012 in order to assume the 
role of counsel for the Boards in 2013 and beyond.   

 

6



Ms. Butterworth introduced Mr. Chris Leauber, Executive Director of the Water and Wastewater 
Authority of Wilson County, to make a presentation to the Board.  After the presentation and a 
brief recess, the boards reaffirmed the October 7, 2010, decision to adopt the American Water 
Works Association (AWWA) water loss methodology for inclusion in any audited financial 
statements received by the Comptroller of the Treasury on or after January 1, 2013.  That 
affirmation was in the form of a motion by Tom Moss, on behalf of both Boards, to adopt the 
following: 

I.  Require that the AWWA Free Water Audit Software be submitted electronically in 
an Excel format.  This item should be submitted in conjunction with the annual 
audited financial statements. 

II. Utilities will be referred to the Boards based on: 
A. Incomplete AWWA water audit submitted anytime on or after January 1, 2013; 
B. For audits received  by the Comptroller of the Treasury from 1/1/2013 to 

12/31/2014 -Validity score of 65 or less or non-revenue water as a percent by 
cost of operation system of 30% or greater; 

C. For audits received by the Comptroller of the Treasury from 1/1/2015  to 
12/31/2016 -Validity score of 70 or less or non-revenue water as a percent by 
cost of operation system of 25% or greater; 

D. For audits received by the Comptroller of the Treasury from 1/1/2017 to 
12/31/2018 - Validity score of 75 or less or non-revenue water as a percent by 
cost of operation system of 20% or greater; 

E. For audits received by the Comptroller of the Treasury from 1/1/2019 to 
12/31/2020 Validity score of 80 or less or non-revenue water as a percent by 
cost of operation system of 20% or greater. 

Failure to achieve any one of designated levels will result in a referral to the Board(s).  

It was clarified that the requirements and levels will be reviewed by the Boards annually to 
ensure the desired results are being achieved.    The levels are subject to change by approval 
of the Board(s). 

Mr. Stafford seconded the motion on behalf of the Utility Management Review Board and Mr. 
Bolton seconded the motion on behalf of the Water and Wastewater Financing Board.  By voice 
vote and show of hands, the motion was approved unanimously by both boards. 

After additional comments from Mr. Leauber regarding the creation of an advisory committee, it 
was decided that staff would return at a future meeting with recommendations for membership 
and responsibilities of such a committee.   

Future Meetings 
The next regular meeting of the Water and Wastewater Financing Board will be held July 12, 
2012, in Nashville. 
 
The next regular meeting of the Utility Management Review Board will be held August 9, 2012, 
in Gatlinburg. 
 

7



Mr. Wilkins moved to adjourn the meeting of the Water and Wastewater Financing Board.  Mr. 
Heidel seconded the motion and it was unanimously approved.   

Ms. Butterworth stated that the Utility Management Review Board would need to have a special 
meeting very quickly and turned to Mr. Cothron for comments.  The Chancellor’s order in the 
Powell-Clinch Utility District (PCUD) case was received early this week.  The Chancellor upheld 
five (5) of the Administrative Law Judge’s denials of PCUD’s motions to dismiss and reversed 
one (1) of the Administrative Law Judge’s denials.  There is a very short time frame allowed to 
determine whether the Board wants to appeal the reversal.  Since the agenda for today’s 
meeting had been set and published, no discussions on the PCUD matter could occur, and 
another meeting would be required.  It was decided that the Board would meet at 10:00 am on 
June 14, 2012, with as many members as possible present physically and others via telephone 
conference call out of necessity. 

Mr. Leggett moved to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Stafford seconded the motion and it was 
unanimously approved. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Ann Butterworth     Joyce Welborn 
Chairperson      Board Coordinator 
 

8



MINUTES 
of the 

UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
June 14, 2012 

10:00 a.m. 
 
 
Chairperson Ann Butterworth opened the meeting of the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) in 
the 17th floor conference room, James K. Polk State Office Building, Nashville, Tennessee.  
 
Board members present and constituting a quorum: 
Ann Butterworth, Comptroller Designee 
Donnie Leggett, Hardeman Fayette Utility District Manager 
Tom Moss, Commissioner of the Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC) Designee 
Troy Roach, New Market Utility District Manager 
Donald Stafford, Eastside Utility District Manager 
Charlie Anderson, Bloomingdale Utility District Commissioner, via phone 
 
Staff present: 
Joyce Welborn, Division of Local Government Audit, Comptroller’s Office 
Greg Cothron, Assistant General Counsel, Comptroller’s Office 
Chad Jackson, Assistant General Counsel, Comptroller’s Office 
Rachel Newton, Assistant General Counsel, Comptroller’s Office 
 
Mr. Cothron provided Board members a brief overview of the purpose of the meeting - the discussion of 
and possible action related to the Chancellor’s Memorandum and Order in the matter of the Utility 
Management Review Board v. Powell-Clinch Utility District Commissioners.  Mr. Cothron specifically 
addressed the Chancellor’s ruling that the UMRB was not authorized to include in the ouster proceeding 
alleged acts not identified in the Comptroller’s investigative audit report. 
 
 Mr. Moss moved that the board appeal the Chancellor’s ruling and have legal staff notify the Attorney 
General’s office of the UMRB’s vote to appeal.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion.  After a roll call 
vote, the motion carried unanimously.  
 
Mr. Roach moved to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion, and it was unanimously 
approved. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Ann Butterworth     Joyce Welborn 
Chairperson      Board Coordinator 

9



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Case Study 

 
Case:  Claiborne County Utilities District, Claiborne County 
Manager: George Coots 
Customers: 5,732 water; 2,190 sewer; 853 natural gas 
Water loss: 27% 
 
The Claiborne County Utilities District has been reported to the Board as having two 
consecutive years with a negative change in net assets in its water system as of July 31, 
2011.  The financial and rate history is reflected on the attached sheet. 
 
District officials stated that the financial condition of the water system is because costs 
are not allocation correctly to each of the three utility systems.  As noted on page 24 of 
the FY 11 financial statements (attached) there is a “lopsided” allocation currently being 
used for such items as uniforms, wages, fringe, fuel expense and debt service.  In 
addition, there was a $526,703 SWAP termination fee in FY 10. 
 
The three commissioners of the District are appointed by the County Mayor. 
 
The District is not hesitant to increase rates.  As reflected in the information provided by 
the Manager, either the minimum bill or the per thousand gallon rate has been 
increased almost annually.  However, the District doesn’t want to increase rates again 
until the proper allocation has been implemented.  That allocation should be in place 
with the FY 12 audited financial statements. 
 
Staff recommends the Board endorse the actions of the Claiborne County 
Utilities District.  The District will remain under the jurisdiction until an audit 
is received which reflects compliance. 

10



 Audited Audited
Fiscal Year ending July 31 2010 2011
Water revenues 1,895,132$      1,974,781$      
Other revenues 185,717$         186,166$         

Total Operating Revenues 2,080,849$      2,160,947$      

Total Operating Expenses 1,934,931$      2,062,782$      

Operating Income 145,918$         98,165$           

Interest Expense 310,916$         160,183$         
SWAP Terminiation Fee (526,703)$        

Change in Net Assets (691,701)$        (62,018)$          

Supplemental Information
Principal payment ? ?
Depreciation 331,045$         333,232$         

Water Rates
Residential
0 - 2,000 gallons 15.48$             17.06$             
2,001 - 20,000 gallons 4.77$               5.00$               
20,001 - 50,000 gallons 4.46$               4.68$               
50,001 - 75,000 gallons 3.87$               4.06$               
75,001 - 100,000 gallons 3.01$               3.16$               
All over 2.69$               2.82$               
Water customers 5,684               5,732               
Water Loss 28.000% 27.000%

CLAIBORNE COUNTY UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Case Study 

 
Case:  Mowbray Utility District, Hamilton County 
Manager: David Callahan 
Customers: 1,635 water 
Water loss: 42.304% 
 
The Mowbray Utility District has been reported to the Board as having two consecutive 
years with a negative change in net assets in its water system as of June 30, 2011, as 
well as excessive water loss.   
 
The financial and rate history is reflected on the attached sheet. 
 
District officials stated that the financial condition in the water system is because of a 
motor failure at the pump station and no rate increases since 2008.  Theft of water is a 
big problem for the District. 
 
All water is purchased from Soddy Daisy-Falling Water Utility District for $2.05 per 
thousand gallons. 
 
The water loss information is included for your review. 
 
To remedy the financial situation, a 3% increase was enacted in July 2011. A $600,000 
grant was received during FY 12 which will ensure financial compliance.  
 
The three commissioners of the District are appointed by the County Mayor. 
 
Staff recommends the Board endorse the actions of the District.  Staff will 
continue to monitor the District until an audit is received which reflects 
compliance. 

30



 Audited Audited
Fiscal Year June 30 2010 2011
Water revenues 684,711$         706,193$         
Other revenues 72,165$           61,960$           

Total Operating Revenues 756,876$         768,153$         

Total Operating Expenses 680,306$         736,216$         

Operating Income 76,570$           31,937$           

Interest Expense 114,740$         121,561$         
Capital contribution 35,170$           
Change in Net Assets (38,170)$          (54,454)$          

Supplemental Information
Principal payment 57,075$           50,243$           
Depreciation 163,327$         164,323$         

Water Rates
Residential
0 - 2,000 gallons 23.54$             23.54$             
All over 4.91$               4.91$               
Water customers 1,613               1,635               
Water Loss 39.963% 42.304%

MOWBRAY UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

31



32



33



34



35



36



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Case Study 

 
Case:   Siam Utility District, Carter County 
Manager:  Doris Lovelace  
Customers:  1,086 water 
Water loss:  39.381% 
 
The Siam Utility District has been reported to the Board as having two consecutive 
years with a negative change in net assets in its water system as well as excessive 
water loss. 
 
A financial and rate history is attached. 
 
During FY 10, there was a problem with turbid water in the wells and the District 
spent approximately $112,000 to install a water line to the lake because 
Elizabethton couldn’t supply enough water to fulfill the needs of the Siam  
customers. 
 
During the installation of the Watauga River Regional Water Authority (WRRWA) 
lines in FY 11, the District chose to replace some 2” galvanized lines with 4” or 6” 
PVC lines.  The cost of $20,000 would have been much higher if the project had not 
been done when the ditches were open for the WRRWA lines.   A bond issue was 
also repaid in FY 11. 
 
The WRRWA system is scheduled to begin pumping potable water in the fall of 
2012, and the Siam Utility District will become a customer.  The savings resulting 
from the connection are estimated to be $3,500 monthly in electrical (pumping) 
costs due to the gravity fed nature of the connection.  In addition, the chemical 
costs will be drastically reduced because all water will be treated before purchasing. 
 
The District recently implemented an aggressive leak detection program and should 
be compliance no later than FY 13. 
 
In April 2012, the minimum bill was increased from $22.00 to $30.00.  The rate for 
usage above the minimum was unchanged. 
 
There have been problems getting the audit completed and submitted in timely 
because of some issues between the District, the accountant and the auditor.  With 
the upgrade of a computer and new accounting software, those issues should be 
resolved and more timely audits should be forthcoming. 
 
Staff recommends that the Board endorse the actions of the District.   Staff 
will continue to monitor the District until an audit is received which 
reflects compliance. 

37



 Audited Audited
Fiscal Year ending January 31 2010 2011
Water revenues 410,127$         401,920$         
Other revenues 124,873$         123,239$         

Total Operating Revenues 535,000$         525,159$         

Total Operating Expenses 507,743$         524,986$         

Operating Income 27,257$           173$                

Interest Expense 52,099$           47,142$           

Change in Net Assets (24,842)$          (46,969)$          

Supplemental Information
Principal payment 21,707$           102,606$         
Depreciation 71,759$           74,137$           
WRRWA 89,409$           90,654$           
Water Rates
Residential
0-2,500 gallons 22.00$             22.00$             
All over 4.50$               4.50$               
Water customers 1,092               1,097               
Water Loss 37.378% 39.381%

Tap fee 550.00$           750.00$           
Meter deposit owner 100.00$           100.00$           
Meter deposit renter 200.00$           200.00$           
Service fee - new service 20.00$             20.00$             
Disconnect fee 25.00$             25.00$             
Returned check fee 25.00$             25.00$             
Watauga Surcharge 7.00$               7.00$               

SIAM UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

38



39



40



41



42



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Case Study 

 
Case:   Unicoi Water Utility District, Unicoi County 
Manager:  Lee Bennett 
Customers:  1,806 water 
Water loss:  21.94% 
 
The Unicoi Water Utility District has been reported to the Board as having two 
consecutive years with a negative change in net assets in its water system. 
 
A financial and rate history is attached. 
 
The District currently purchases water from the Town of Erwin for $1.99 per 
thousand gallons.  The principal reason for the financially distressed condition of the 
District is expenses related to exploratory drilling for two new water wells in an 
attempt to be independent of the Town.  Drilling for the two “dry” wells cost 
approximately $250,000.   
 
Since the search for water was unsuccessful, the District signed a twenty-year 
contract in July 2011 to continue to purchase water from Erwin.   Because the rate 
being charged to the District is higher than the residential customer rate of the 
Town, the contract has a clause in it that restricts an increase in the District rates 
until the residential rates of the Town’s customers are equal to the District’s rate. 
 
The District has been approved to borrow $2.5 million from TAUD.   
 
Rates are reviewed every October – the last increase being effective October 2009. 
 
All the expenses related to the search for well water have been paid and should not 
be repeated, the projections from the District reflects that it will be in compliance 
for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2012.     
 
The commissioners are elected to four-year terms by the customers - one vote per 
meter.  Notice of election is published in the newspaper.  Nominations are made on 
a Saturday morning from 8:00 am to 8:45 am, a paper ballot is prepared and open 
voting is held at the District office from 9 am to 12:00 noon.  The votes are triple 
counted and results announced.   
 
Staff recommends that the Board endorse the actions of the District.  Staff 
will continue to monitor the case until an audit is received which reflects 
compliance. 

43



 Audited Audited
Fiscal Year September 30 2010 2011
Water revenues 800,689$         753,661$         
Other revenues 87,800$           68,712$           
Grant revenue 108,600$         

Total Operating Revenues 997,089$         822,373$         

Total Operating Expenses 847,014$         873,887$         

Operating Income 150,075$         (51,514)$          

Interest Expense 30,037$           94,204$           
Exploratory/dry wells expense (132,766)$        (123,821)$        

Change in Net Assets (12,728)$          (269,539)$        

Supplemental Information
Principal payment 549,832$         68,847$           
Depreciation 75,985$           82,063$           

Water Rates
Residential
0-1,500 gallons 23.50$             23.50$             
All over 3.85$               3.85$               
Water customers 1,799               1,806               
Water Loss 20.040% 21.940%

UNICOI WATER UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Case Study 

 
Case:  West Cumberland Utility District, Cumberland County 
Management: Melissa Bryant, Office Manager, David Bell, Field Manager 
Customers: 1,849 water 
Water loss: 37.758% 
 
The West Cumberland Utility District has been reported to the Board as having two 
consecutive years with a negative change in net assets in its water system as of June 
30, 2011.  The financial and rate history is shown on the attached sheet. 
 
The District purchases all its water from the Bon De Croft Utility District for $3.58 per 
thousand gallons.  That rate was increased from $3.45 in October 2011. 
 
District officials stated that the financial condition is a result of the depreciation and 
interest expense related to a new 12-inch water line project.  The water loss was 
created by the increased pressure on the old lines from the project. 
 
Fifteen meters have been purchased in order to “zone” the system in an attempt to 
isolate any current and future water leaks.  The drastic elevation changes in the area of 
the District create extreme pressure variances   A leak detection company which had 
assisted the District in the past will be returning in the near future to assist with 
additional leak detection.  Within the last three years, all residential meters have been 
changed to radio read. 
 
The five commissioners of the District are elected by the customers.  The request for 
nominations is included on the water bills and in the local newspaper.  Petitions, signed 
by ten customers, are also accepted. Questionnaires are completed by each nominee. 
The current commissioners select three names for each vacant position to be included 
on the ballot.  Cumberland County allows the District to use a voting machine.  An 
election official sets up the machine and records the vote after the poll is closed.  Voting 
hours are between 7:00 am and 6:00 pm.  There is minimal expense for the election. 
 
The District increased its rates by 10% on July 1, 2011.  Over the next three years, the 
District is committed to increasing its rates 4% annually and reducing its water loss by 
5% annually.  For each percentage of water loss reduced by less than 5%, the rates will 
be increased by one percentage point. 
 
Staff recommends the Board endorse the actions of the West Cumberland 
Utility District.  The District will remain under the jurisdiction of the Board 
until an audit is received which reflects compliance. 

56



 Audited Audited
Fiscal Year ending June 30 2010 2011
Water revenues 954,808$         1,008,449$      
Other revenues 74,682$           57,355$           

Total Operating Revenues 1,029,490$      1,065,804$      

Total Operating Expenses 1,024,521$      1,072,395$      

Operating Income 4,969$             (6,591)$            

Interest Expense 120,141$         195,381$         
Grant funds 9,000$             
Change in Net Assets (115,172)$        (192,972)$        

Supplemental Information
Principal payment 35,858$           37,543$           
Depreciation 192,978$         215,346$         

Water Rates
Residential 7/1/2011
Minimum bill 10.00$             12.00$             13.50$             
per thousand gallons to 7,999 9.32$               9.50$               10.45$             
All over 7,999 gallons 11.32$             11.50$             12.45$             
Water customers 1,846               1,849               
Water Loss 31.361% 37.758%

WEST CUMBERLAND UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



 Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Fiscal year ended 6/30 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Water revenues 1,414,072$    1,348,293$    1,439,329$     1,555,876$    1,674,186$    
Other revenues 81,322$         86,675$         88,285$         96,770$        112,725$      

Total Operating Revenues 1,495,394$  1,434,968$  1,527,614$   1,652,646$ 1,786,911$ 

Total Operating Expenses  $  1,347,570 1,374,359$  1,541,959$   1,843,387$ 1,767,870$ 

Operating Income 147,824$       60,609$         (14,345)$        (190,741)$     19,041$        

Interest Expense  $      110,767 107,614$       104,131$        109,165$      89,223$        
Capital Contributions  $        32,797 32,146$         73,592$         
Change in Net Assets 69,854$       (14,859)$      (44,884)$      (299,906)$   (70,182)$     

Supplemental Information
Principal payment 72,031$         74,745$         77,455$         55,092$        50,851$        
Depreciation 172,418$       168,196$       166,369$        175,856$      197,678$      

Water Rates
3/4" meter 2,000 gallons 11.50$          17.10$          
1" meter 2,000 gallons 22.00$          31.50$          
2" meter 2,000 gallons 31.25$          43.50$          
4" meter 2,000 gallons 120.00$         n/a
6" meter 2,000 gallons 190.00$         271.50$        
over 2,000 gallons 4.50$            6.40$            
Tap fee 3/4" meter 500.00$              1,100.00$          
Tap fee 1" meter 1,000.00$           2,000.00$          
Customers - residential 3,933                  4,035                   4,035                 4,115                 
Customers - commercial 95                       
Water loss 17.57% 17.86% 54.90% 38.50%

TUCKALEECHEE UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

66



67



68



69



70



71



         DeWhite Utility District    
     

                            Addressing Water Loss 
 
 
1. Are you billing for all general government water use? Examples: City Hall, 

Parks, 
Community Centers, etc. 

 
1. YES 
 
2. Are you accounting for the water used by the water and/or sewer department? 
 
2. YES 
 
3. Do you periodically check or inspect all 2" and larger meters? 
 
3. YES 
 
4. Do you have a recalibration policy and procedure in place? 
 
4. NO 
 
5. Do you have a meter replacement policy? Is the trigger based on age (length of 

time in service) or on gallons? 
 
5. YES, Trigger is all of the above mentioned. The District is currently replacing all 
meters to remote reads as it can afford to do so. 
 
6. Do you have a process to inspect for unauthorized consumption? What are 

the consequences if unauthorized consumption is discovered? 
 
6. YES 
 
7. Do you have a leak detection program currently in place? 
 
7. NO, Only a procedure. With help from T.A.U.D. the District can implement one. 
 
8. Do you have written policies, including a policy for billing adjustments? Are the 

written policies followed correctly by all levels of staff? 
 
8. YES 
 
9. Do you have authorized non-customer users (volunteer fire departments, etc)? 

Do you account for the use? Do you have a method for the user to report water 
usage? 

 
9. YES 
 

72



10. Is your system "zoned" to isolate water loss? 
 
10. YES and working to install more zone meters. 
 
11. Do you search for leaks at night when there is little traffic or small household 
usage? 
 
11. NO 
 
12. Do you or can you control pressure surges? 
 
12. NO, Our system has constant speed pumps but planning to install VFD’S on all 
pumping stations to help with pressure surges. 
 
13. Do you have or have access to leak detection equipment? 
 
13. YES 
 
14. What is your policy for notifying customers they have a leak? 
 
14. All customers are notified by one of the following: in person, door hanger, 
phone call or through mailing. 
 
15. Do you have a public relations program to encourage citizens to report leaks? 
 
15. NO 
 
16. Do you have a policy to prosecute water theft or meter tampering/damage? 
 
16. YES, T.A.U.D. Policy 
 
17. What is the monetary value of the lost water? 
 
17. $ 2.44 per thousand gals. 
 
18. Is the cost to repair the leak justified based on the amount of water being lost? 
 
18. NO, All leaks are repaired when found. 

73



DeWhite Utility District 

 Water Loss Reduction Plan 

 

The DeWhite Utility District had an annual water loss of 41% for fiscal year 2011.  The system 
understands the urgency and importance of maintaining a low water loss percentage and has 
taken steps over the past several years to reduce this number down. This plan was developed in 
accordance with the AWWA Water Audit to reduce our water loss even further.  The Audit did 
show our utility was doing a good job with a relatively low Infrastructure Leakage Index; 
however the utility is committed to doing an even better job in this area.  The following list is 
the plans of the utility to get this problem under control. 

 

1.  The DeWhite Utility District has an ongoing meter change out program. As funds permits the 
Utility is going to automated meter reads (AMR) approx 300 meters per year. This year the 
District was able to purchase and install 528 meters and also convert 50 existing meters to 
automated meter reads.  

2. The District installed 7 zone meters in 2010 and has since then added 2 more zone meters. 
The District is also looking into implementing a S.C.A.D.A. system to help decrease the longevity 
of these leaks.   

3.  The District will continue with its ongoing leak survey throughout the system.  

4. The system is looking at problematic areas to priorities and replace pipe. The District is 
replacing approximately 4,760 ft. of problematic piping this summer, and will continue to 
identify new areas that may need replacing. 

74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Creation petition 

 
Case:  Hartsville-Trousdale County Utility District 
Customers: 2,771 
Water loss: 32% 
 
A petition is before the Board to allow the creation of the Hartsville-Trousdale County 
Water/Sewer Utility District.  It is my understanding that the system wants to be 
completely separate from the metropolitan government.  The proposed utility district 
plans to acquire the existing water and sewer system and will serve the same customers 
as the existing systems.  
 
In 2001, the City of Hartsville and Trousdale County unified into a metropolitan form of 
government.  The water/sewer information was included in the combined metro audit 
beginning in 2005.  For the fiscal years ending June 30, 2005 thru June 30, 2009, there 
were deficiencies noted in the audits.  It appears that the deficiencies were corrected 
because none were noted in the June 30, 2010 and 2011 audits. 
 
As reflected in the attached analysis, the utility system appears to rely heavily on grant 
funds. According to the attached analysis the system is not in compliance with state law 
which requires the “administrative agency shall determine and fix charges to be made 
for furnishing any and all of the facilities as provided…upon a basis calculated to ensure 
the fiscal solvency of the operation at all times.” (TCA 5-16-109)  Similarly, utility 
districts are required to prescribe and collect reasonable rates, fees, tolls or charges to 
ensure that such system shall be and always remain self-supporting (TCA 7-82-403). 
Other statutes, TCA 7-34-115 and TCA 9-21-308 also have language requiring that rates 
and fees be sufficient to fund operation, maintenance, debt service and depreciation. 
 
The related water loss information is border-line with the current 35% standard.  Using 
the information in the free water audit software report for FY 10, the system would be 
substantially outside the recently adopted standards. 
 
FY 11 showed a negative change in net assets.  FY 12 information has not been 
provided to staff.  Information provided by the utility contains a budget for FY 13 
reflecting a positive change in net assets, however it includes $1,000,000 in grant funds.   
 
At the public hearing to create the utility district, the county mayor is to find “that the 
public convenience and necessity requires the creation of the district; and the creation 
of the district is economically sound and desirable…”  It appears that neither of the 
conditions has been met.   Therefore, based on currently available information, 
staff recommends the Board deny the petition for the creation of the 
Hartsville-Trousdale Water/Sewer Utility District. 

88



FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11
W/S Revenues 1,489,599$       1,481,271$       1,380,269$         1,174,777$      
Other revenues 82,670$             76,813$             55,430$               404,983$         
Investment 79,690$             45,140$             24,816$               15,417$            
insurance recovery 170,912$         
Total revenue 1,651,959$       1,603,224$       1,460,515$         1,766,089$      

Operating expenses 2,314,824$       1,960,782$       1,795,439$         2,043,692$      
Bond interest 36,410$             26,998$             18,483$               13,886$            
Loss on disposal of assets 8,270$                 3,598$              
Total expenses 2,351,234$       1,987,780$       1,822,192$         2,061,176$      

Operating income (699,275)$         (384,556)$         (361,677)$           (295,087)$        
grant revenue 156,230$           882,126$          450,234$            173,693$         
Contributions 1,836,656$       

Transfers In(out) 10,254$             16,511$               16,509$            

Net change in assets 1,293,611$       507,824$          105,068$            (104,885)$        

Depreciation 783,772$           335,680$            313,641$         

Water Loss 38.2% 36.1% 32%

Customers 2,772                 2,782                   2,771                
Rates
Inside
0-2,000 gallons 11.46$               11.46$                 12.60$              
All over 3.74$                 3.74$                   4.11$                
Outside Suburban
0-2,000 gallons 15.63$               15.63$                 
All over 6.57$                 6.57$                   
Outside Rural
0-2,000 gallons 19.24$               19.24$                 21.16$              
All over 6.57$                 6.57$                   7.22$                

Analysis of Hartsville/Trousdale County Utility District - Proposed
Information from audited financial statements

89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



DISTRICT COUNTY LAST AUDIT
LAST BD 

APPEARANCE
Bedford County UD Bedford  June-11 April-10
Bloomingdale UD                     WL Sullivan June-11 October-12
Bristol-Bluff City UD Sullivan July-11 October-10
Carderview UD Johnson June-11 October-12
Cedar Grove UD                         WL Carroll June-11 October-11
Cherokee Hills UD                    WL Polk December-11 October-12
Chuckey UD                                WL Greene June-11 October-11
Citizens Gas UD Scott November-10 February-12
Claiborne County UD Claiborne July-11 August-12
Clarksburg UD Carroll December-11 October-12
Clay Gas UD Clay  August-10 February-10
Cookeville Boat Dock Road     WL Putnam December-10 February-12
Cross Anchor UD                      WL Greene June-11 October-11
DeWhite UD                               WL White December-11 October-11
Double Springs UD                     WL Putnam April-11 February-12
East Sevier UD                           WL Sevier June-11 October-11
Fall River Road UD Lawrence  December-11 October-12
First UD of Hardin County Hardin March-12 February-12
Gibson County Municipal District  WL Gibson November-11 October-12
Grandview UD Rhea December-10 December-10
Hampton UD                              WL Carter November-11 August-12
Harbor UD                                  WL Benton June-11 October-11
Intermont UD Sullivan December-11 October-11
Iron City UD Lawrence  December-10 February-12
Jackson County UD                     WL Jackson December-10 October-12
Knox Chapman                            WL Knox February-11 February-12
Leoma UD Lawrence  December-10 February-12
Lone Oak UD Sequatchie  December-10 April-10
Minor Hill UD                               WL Giles December-10 October-11
Mooresburg UD Hawkins   December-08 August-08
Mowbray UD Hamilton June-11 August-12
Natural Gas UD of Hawkins Co Hawkins   March-12 December-12
Northeast Henry County UD      WL Henry June-10 October-11
Quebeck-Walling                          WL White December-10 February-12
Sale Creek UD                               WL Hamilton June-11 October-11
Samburg Utility District Obion  January-11 October-08
Savannah Valley UD Hamilton April-11 February-12
Shady Grove UD                           WL Jefferson September-11 October-11
Siam UD                                         WL Carter January-11 August-12
Sneedville UD Hancock March-11
SoddyDaisy-Falling Water UD     WL Hamilton August-11 October-11
South Elizabethton UD                 WL Carter February-11 October-11
South Giles UD                              WL Giles December-10 October-12
South Side UD Smith December-11 February-12
Striggersville UD Hawkins   December-10 February-12
Sunbright UD                                 WL Morgan March-11 February-12
Tuckaleechee UD Blount June-11 August-12
Unicoi Water UD Unicoi September-11 August-12
Webb Creek UD Sevier  December-11 October-11
West Cumberland UD Cumberland June-11 August-12
West Point UD                                 WL Lawrence  December-11 October-12
Woodlawn UD                                WL Montgomery December-11 October-12

JURISDICTION LIST FOR THE UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD AUGUST 2012

114



WATER LOSS STATUS

District
original 

referral %
original audit 
referral date

subsequent 
review %

subsequent 
review date

Bloomingdale 45.064% 6/30/2010 44.64% 6/30/2011
Cedar Grove 46.705% 6/30/2010 40.61% 6/30/2011
Cherokee Hills 100.000% 12/31/2010 100.00% 12/31/2011
Chuckey 36.770% 6/30/2010 39.49% 6/30/2011
Cookeville Boat Dock Road 45.480% 12/31/2009 45.92% 12/31/2010
Cross Anchor 42.660% 6/30/2010 45.73% 6/30/2011
DeWhite 42.000% 12/31/2010 41.60% 12/31/2011
Double Springs 37.580% 4/30/2010 37.74% 4/30/2011
East Sevier 75.000% 6/30/2010 72.00% 6/30/2011
Fall River Road 45.00% 12/31/2010 41.00% 12/31/2011
Gibson Co. Municipal 45.720% 11/30/2010 45.21% 11/30/2011
Hampton 33.330% 11/30/2010 35.49% 11/30/2011
Harbor 54.350% 6/30/2010 61.64% 6/30/2011
Intermont 35.11% 12/31/2010 41.75% 12/31/2011
Jackson County 36.93% 12/31/2010
Knox Chapman 36.10% 2/28/2011
Minor Hill 37.706% 12/31/2010
Mowbray 41.480% 8/31/2010 42.30% 6/30/2011
Northeast Henry 35.000% 6/30/2010
Quebeck-Walling 35.100% 12/31/2010
Sale Creek 60.320% 6/30/2010 49.24% 6/30/2011
Shady Grove 37.090% 9/30/2010 40.16% 9/30/2011
Siam 39.378% 1/31/2010 39.38% 1/31/2011
Soddy-Daisy/Falling Water 39.960% 6/30/2010 37.50% 8/31/2011
South Elizabethton 38.360% 2/28/2010 37.37% 2/28/2011
South Giles 40.744% 12/31/2010
Striggersville 44.210% 12/31/2010 46.26% 12/31/2011
Sunbright 42.300% 3/31/2010 49.00% 3/31/2011
West Point 67.000% 12/31/2009 41.00% 12/31/2010 45.00% 12/31/2011
Woodlawn 37% 12/31/2011

115


	UMRB Sunshine 2012 August 9
	UMRB Minutes of February 2, 2012
	UMRB - WWFB Minutes of June 6, 2012
	UMRB Minutes of June 14, 2012
	Claiborne Co UD case 08092012
	Claiborne County UD
	History file

	info from UD 08092012a
	info from UD 08092012
	MowbrayUD case 08092012
	Mowbray UD
	History file

	info from UD 08092012
	Siam UD case 08092012
	Siam UD
	History file

	info from UD 08092012
	info from UD 08092012a
	Unicoi Co Water UD case 08092012
	Unicoi Water UD
	History file

	info from UD 08092012
	W Cumberland UD case 08092012
	West Cumberland UD
	History file

	info from UD 08092012a
	info from UD 08092012 b
	Tuckaleechee UD
	History file

	info from UD 08092012
	DeWhite WL update a 08092012
	DeWhite WL update b 08092012
	compliance 08092012
	Hartsville Trousdale UD creation case 08092012
	Financial analysis
	Sheet1

	UD creation part 1
	UD Creation part 2
	UD creation part 3
	Jurisdiction 2012 August
	Sheet1

	Water loss status ONGOING both bds (2)
	UMRB




